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ADDENDUM 1 
Date of Addendum: 3/19/18 

 
 
NOTICE TO ALL BIDDERS AND PLANHOLDERS 
The Contract Documents for the above-referenced Project are modified as set forth in this Addendum.   
The original Contract Documents and any previously issued addenda remain in full force and effect, 
except as modified by this Addendum, which is hereby made part of the Contract Documents.  Bidder 
shall take this Addendum into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid, and shall acknowledge 
receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the Bid Form. 
 
BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE 
 

The RFP submittal deadline remains the same and is not changed by this Addendum.  
 
1.0 – SPECIFICATIONS N/A 
Item Section No. Description of Change 

1.1   
1.2   
1.3   

 
2.0 – DRAWINGS N/A 
Item Drawing No. Description of Change 

2.1   
2.2   
2.3   

 
3.0 – QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
The following questions and answers are provided as a matter of information to clarify issues raised about 
the Contract Documents.  To the extent that changes to the Contract Documents are required based on 
the questions received, the Contract Documents have been modified as noted above in the Specifications 
and Drawings sections of this Addendum. 
Item Questions and Answers 

3.1 Question:  Are you currently working with an agency on your marketing and advertising? 
Answer:  Yes, we are currently under contract with a local agency; 3Seed Marketing, Design and 
Interactive. This three-year contract ends June 30, 2018, so we are going out for proposals for 
the next three-year cycle. 

3.2 Question:  Do you have a preference for a local firm or will you consider a national agency? 
Answer:  Although it is not stated formally in the RFP, because of the nature of the work, we do 
prefer a local company or local contact. 

3.3 Question:  What is the budget range for this project? 
Answer:  The RFP is designed to solicit budget estimates for this project. Within those 
parameters, we are working with a media buying budget of approximately $400,000. 

3.4 Question:  Please clarify what “Explain project tracking system” means. Are you referring to how 
the company tracks jobs internally or does it mean something else? 
Answer:  How do you propose managing the college as a client? Will you be using project 
management software or other means? How will you be communicating with us and ensuring 
projects meet deadlines? 

3.5 Question:   Please clarify how you determine “successful campaigns and products.”  For 
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example, a college view book created for a vice-president that receives accolades from the vice-
president may be deemed successful, but subjective.  Another example, a Facebook campaign 
directing persons to a website to sign up for a free consultation for a service may be judged by 
the number of persons who register for the consultation.  The number of registrants does not 
necessarily imply the number that purchased the service. 
Answer:  Our success is reflected in enrollment growth, both in the overall college and in specific 
programs that we market. Smaller data points would be attendance at an open house, increase 
in applications, etc. 

3.6 Question: On average, what is the conversion ratio of prospects to students? Where are you 
seeing the best ratio? Where are you struggling most with the ratio? 
Answer:  This will be addressed with the winning agency. This level of detail won't be shared at 
the proposal stage.  

3.7 Question: Do you envision any formal market research as being part of this process? 
Answer: The RFP doesn’t include market research, which would be a separate project, if we opt 
to have that completed. At this point, there aren’t plans to do market research. 

3.8 Question:  How much time should each agency spend on the development and presentation of 
creative concepts?  How will the concepts be evaluated? 
Answer:  It’s difficult to say how much time should be spent. We don’t expect a full campaign, but 
a couple of examples of ideas you have to market LCCC. In the past, agencies have presented 
concepts for a print piece, a billboard, and brief description of a TV spot. Concepts will be 
evaluated based on creativity, appropriate messaging, flexibility for the concept to be deployed in 
different media, etc. 

3.9 Question:  Will finalists have an opportunity to review prior research before developing 
concepts? 
Answer:  No, we understand the agencies/finalists may be working with limited knowledge about 
the college and will take that into consideration. Agencies are welcome to do their own research 
about the college on the web site and other sources, but at this stage, we won’t be able to share 
research documents. After the awarding of the bid, the agency would have access to that, as 
well as reports on enrollment growth, the enrollment management plan, strategic plan, and any 
other documents that would be helpful. 

3.10 Question:  Will companies be compensated for the creative concepts?  
Answer:  The creative concepts will be presented by the finalists as part of the proposal process. 
We will not reimburse for time spent developing concepts or the proposal. 

3.11 Question:  What is the budget range for this project without the media buy? What is your 
anticipated media spend over the course of this project? 
Answer:  The RFP is designed to solicit budget estimates for this project. Within those 
parameters, we are working with a media buying budget of approximately $400,000. 

3.12 Question:  After submitting the RFP on 3/26, when will we be notified if we’ve made it to the next 
round where concepts are presented? 
Answer:  The top 3-5 finalists will be selected and notified by Monday, April 9. Presentations will 
be scheduled for the week of April 23. 

3.13 Question:  If we’re selected to present concepts, can we schedule an input meeting with the 
review committee? If not, can we ask additional questions for creative direction? 
Answer:  We won’t schedule meetings with the finalists, but will be happy to respond to questions 
as you develop concepts. 

3.14 Question:  Is there a separate budget for the Initial Branding & Identity Development? If so, what 
is it? 
Answer:  These expenses would need to be in your proposal. 

3.15 Question:  Do you track the traffic source / marketing campaign for each visitor, lead and new 
student? 

SEO – down to keyword 
PPC – down to campaign / keyword 
Email -  by campaign 
Direct mail – by mailing 
Social Media – by site 
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Answer:  This will be addressed with the winning agency but that level of detail won't be shared 
at this proposal stage.  

3.16 Question:  We know that the College had a similar solicitation for services in 2015.  What agency 
was hired?  What did you like or not like about the engagement and why are you searching 
again? 
Answer:  We have been with 3Seed Marketing and Interactive since July 1, 2015. We have been 
happy with this agency, but it is encouraged that we invite proposals for this service every three 
years. The agency is responsive and creative with a wide range of expertise. There hasn’t been 
anything we disliked. 

3.17 Question:  What percentage of the decision is based on cost? The RFP mentions that cost is an 
important factor, but what is the weight of cost within the evaluation? 
Answer:  We will weigh cost and other factors evenly. Evaluation will be based on ability to do the 
wide range of projects, creativity, responsiveness, etc., as well as cost. 

3.18 Question:  On page 6 under Proposal Response, the 3rd item is “Provide recommendations on 
strategies and tactics.”  Since the scope of work is broad, please clarify this request, such as 
what are the strategies and tactics for? 
Answer:  Strategies and tactics in regards to enrollment growth and reaching our target markets. 

3.19 Question:  Is a local firm preferred? 
Answer:  Although a local firm has advantages, we are not limiting our choices to a local 
company. 

3.20 Question:  Is a Pennsylvania firm preferred? 
Answer:  Yes, a Pennsylvania firm is preferred. 

3.21 Question:  Will you share the Q&A from other vendors? 
Answer: Yes, all the questions and answers from other vendors will be shared by Susan 
Lindenmuth, Purchasing & Contracts Manager 

3.22 Question: Can LCCC provide more details regarding the success measures for this project?  
Answer:  Success will be measured in various ways, including percentage of enrollment growth 
overall, increase in goal completion (completing an inquiry form online), increase in enrollment in 
specific programs, increase in attendance at enrollment events such as open houses and 
information nights. 

3.23 Question:  Does LCCC have an incumbent or preferred vendor-or short list of vendors-in mind 
for this project? 
Answer:  The college does not have a preferred vendor list. 

3.24 Question:  How many agencies received this RFP? 
Answer:  37 

3.25 Question:  Do you have a current agency, and if so, was the current agency invited to pitch? 
Answer:  3Seed is our current agency and yes they were invited to bid.  

3.26 Question:  Is there any requirement from the state of Pennsylvania or Lehigh County to review 
your agency contracts on a regular basis? If so, is that the reason for sending out an RFP? 
Answer:  There are no governmental regulations but institutionally it is recommended that we 
rebid ongoing projects on a three-year cycle. Our current contract expires June 30, 2018. 

3.27 Question:  What do you feel is lacking about your current strategy or creative? 
Answer: In terms of what is lacking, we are happy with our current agency, but we discuss 
campaign strategy annually in order to keep things fresh and address changes in the 
marketplace.  

3.28 Question:  You asked for strategy and tactics as part of the initial proposal. It’s hard to put this 
together without more information. What kind of analysis, research, goals, or other helpful 
references can be made available to guide this portion of the proposal? 
Answer: Address strategy on a general basis. We understand that agencies don't have access to 
research at this point.  

3.29 Question:  Do you have a current brand position and can you share that with us? 
Answer: Our brand position is that LCCC is accessible and affordable, with programs that 
transfer to state universities and that prepare students for careers in areas that pay family 
sustaining wages.  

3.30 Question:  Are you looking for a new logo and is that what you mean by identity concept? 
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Answer: No, we aren't looking for a logo redesign. 
3.31 Question:  Do you want to keep your “start here, go anywhere” tagline or is refreshing that up for 

consideration? 
Answer: We plan to keep the existing tag line. 

3.32 Question:  Does the college have a brand strategy? Specifically, we wish to understand how your 
brand strategy builds on a vision, is aligned with business strategy, emerges from the college’s 
values and culture, reflects an in-depth understanding of the student body’s needs and 
perceptions. 
Answer: The colleges brand strategy is built on its institutional mission of providing a high quality 
education that is affordable and accessible. The tag line also reflects the belief that starting at 
LCCC launches the student on a great future. More detail on this issue can be in discussion with 
the agency awarded the contract.  

  
  
  
  
  
 

END OF ADDENDUM 


